22

23

24

25

26

# IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF KING

SUBPOENA DUCES TECUM FOR CAMERA FOOTAGE (SPD GO #2012-133333/133350/133358/133370/133372/133411)

O: KOMO 4 Television
C/O Fisher Interactive Network
140 Fourth Avenue, Suite 370
Seattle, WA 98109

KING 5 Television News 333 Dexter Avenue N Seattle, WA 98109

KIRO 7 Television 2807 Third Avenue Seattle, WA 98121

KCPQ 13 Television 1813 Westlake Avenue North Seattle, WA 98109

The Seattle Times 1000 Denny Way Seattle, WA 98109

The Seattle Post Intelligencer 101 Elliott Avenue West Seattle, WA 98119

YOU ARE HEREBY COMMANDED to appear at Seattle Police Department (SPD) – Headquarters, 610 Fifth Avenue, P.O. Box 34986, Seattle, WA 98124, on May 8, 2012, at the hour of 9:00 a.m., and bring with you the following record(s):

SUBPOENA DUCES TECUM - 1

SEATTLE POLICE DEPARTMENT

610 FIFTH AVENUE SEATTLE, WASHINGTON 98124



- Camera footage of the May Day protest(s) on May 1, 2012 which occurred in a variety of venues within the City of Seattle, King County, Washington. The venues include gathering of attendees were at a variety of locations including but not limited to Westlake Park (401 Pine Street), Judkins Park (2150 South Norman Street) and Seattle Central Community College (1701 Broadway Avenue) prior to the initiation of a march and following the completion of the march.
- 2. Camera footage of the complete march route(s) from the above listed venues during the time of the demonstrations to their respective destination.

PURSUANT TO RCW 10.79.015, the records requested by and through this subpoena have been identified as evidence material to the investigation or prosecution of a felony including, but not limited to, acts of Malicious Mischief of Wells Fargo Bank located at 1215 4 Avenue, a Porsche 911 parked 5<sup>th</sup> Avenue/Seneca Street, Homestreet Bank located at 1314 6 Avenue, New Saigon Restaurant at 1529 6 Avenue, Forever 21 at 601 Pine Street, American Apparel at 1504 6 Avenue, Niketown at 1500 6 Avenue, Fox Grill at 1522 6 Avenue, Mario's at 1513 6 Avenue, Eileen Fisher at 521 Pine Street, Bocz Salon at 1523 6 Avenue, T-Mobile at 1527 6 Avenue, yet to be reported property damage, Destruction of Government Property in violation of Title 18, USC Section 1361 at the Nakamura Federal Courthouse at 1010 5 Avenue, assaults on Seattle Police Officers, members of the media and general public yet to be identified and rioting. See attached Declaration of Detective Rik Hall.

ALTERNATIVE MEANS OF SATISFYING THIS SUBPOENA: You may satisfy this subpoena by delivering the requested item(s) to the Seattle Police Department, Attention: Detective Rik Hall, with a certificate of authenticity on or before the above date.

### FAILURE TO COMPLY MAY BE CONSIDERED CONTEMPT OF COURT.

SIGNED AND DATED this 7th day of May, 2012.

Honorable

SUPERIOR COURT JUDGE

PRESENTED BY:

Detective Rik Hall, #6154 Seattle Police Department

SUBPOENA DUCES TECUM - 3

SEATTLE POLICE DEPARTMENT

610 FIFTH AVENUE SEATTLE, WASHINGTON 98124

## IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF KING

DECLARATION OF DETECTIVE RIK HALL
IN SUPPORT OF SUBPOENA DUCES TECUM
SUBMITTED TO KOMO 4 TELEVISION, KING 5 TELEVISION
KIRO7 TELEVISION, KCPQ 13 TELEVISION, THE SEATTLE TIMES,
THE SEATTLE POST INTELLIGENCER

### Rik Hall declares:

- 1. I have served as a police officer in Seattle for over sixteen years and been assigned as a detective for the past eight years. I have personal knowledge of the matters asserted in this affidavit.
- I am currently investigating crimes of MALICIOUS MISCHIEF, DESTRUCTION OF GOVERNMENT PROPERTY (Title 18 USC Section 1361), RIOT or ASSAULT.
- 3. I was a patrol officer assigned to bicycle patrol for approximately seven years. During that time, as part of my assignment and responsibilities, I worked small and large demonstrations as a rapid response team/demonstration management officer. I was assigned in that capacity during the World Trade Organization (WTO) riots in 1999 as well as the anniversary WTO events (N30) which occurred for the next several years. During those events, as well as numerous others, I had direct contact and observations of persons using tactics and methods consistent with black bloc anarchism. During my current assignment as a detective, I have attended training regarding anarchism as well as working cases involving persons who use tactics, clothing and methods consistent with black bloc anarchism. I have observed that individuals and groups who use the black bloc methodology wear a "uniform" which conceals

their identity and makes each person appear relatively alike; making it difficult to determine which person committed the criminal act. The individual perpetrator will commit the criminal act then return to their group to rapidly "mix" in order to make tracking of the individual very difficult. I have observed a tactic known as "de-blocing. Individuals will arrive at a venue in "regular clothes" in order to conceal their ideology. The group will then form into a huddle and put on clothing and concealment to conceal their identity. They will sometimes cover the group with a banner to conceal their actions. Once the criminal act is perpetrated, they will return to regular clothing during the ensuing chaos.

- 4. The "Cascadian Anarchist Olympics" training was held in Olympia, Washington on April 20-22, 2012 listed in the schedule of events was "team de-bloc." During the May Day event on May 1, 2012, "black bloc anarchists" were observed putting on their concealing clothing prior to incidents and removing it afterward to as described above to thwart identification by law enforcement.
- 5. On Tuesday, May 1, 2012, numerous individuals and groups staged several large protests at a variety of venues in the City of Seattle, County of King, State of Washington. The number of attendees during these events numbered in the thousands. Within the permitted events and marches as well as the unpermitted events and marches were individuals and groups who damaged private property, damaged and destroyed government property and committed acts of riot and assault. Individuals within these groups used items including, but not limited to, hammers, large diameter dowels, rocks, crow bars, poles, lit road flares, smoke bombs, hands, fists and spray-paint. Damage to property included, but was not limited to shattered windows, graffiti, damage to door and window framing. A large portion of the individuals and groups that perpetrated these crimes wore similar/identical black clothing which included bandannas/balaclavas/gas mask as well as eyewear to thwart law enforcement and

DECLARATION OF DETECTIVE RIK HALL IN SUPPORT OF SUBPOENA DUCES TECUM SUBMITTED TO KOMO, KIRO, KSTW, KCPQ - 2 SEATTLE POLICE DEPARTMENT
610 FIFTH AVENUE
SEATTLE, WASHINGTON 98124

witnesses from identifying the individuals who had performed the criminal act. This tactic is consistent with black bloc anarchism.

- 6. Most retail businesses focus surveillance video toward the interior of the business, thus limiting substantive footage of individuals approaching their business from the exterior. While the plentiful amounts of internet video available at the time of this subpoena shows persons participating in the aforementioned crimes, the affiant has been unable to locate any video that shows the subjects prior to the crime, without their concealing garb. Raw footage from the above listed media sources will assist in revealing the identity of the individuals responsible for the felony and misdemeanor state and federal crimes listed above.
- 7. On February 8, 2012 following an unpermitted march attended by individuals dressed and carrying black flags consistent with black bloc anarchism in which there had been property destructions, while mid-block in the street, multiple members of the crowd broke into a run, scattering and dispersing through the blocks to west of Broadway Avenue, stripping off their "anarchist garb," in essence, de-blocing.
- 8. During the May 1, 2012 event, I observed multiple news stations filming what was happening, their camera footage is valuable, necessary and material evidence in the further investigation of this incident.
- 9. It is my belief that evidence of the crime(s) of MALICIOUS MISCHIEF, DESTRUCTION OF GOVERNMENT PROPERTY (Title 18 USC Section 1361), RIOT and ASSAULT is located in, on, or about KOMO 4 Television C/O Fisher Interactive Network 140 Fourth Avenue, Suite 370 Seattle, WA 98109; KING 5 Television KIRO 7 Television 2807 Third Avenue Seattle, WA 98121; KCPQ 13 Television 1813 Westlake Avenue North Seattle, WA 98109; The Seattle Times 1000 Denny Way Seattle, WA 98109; The Seattle Post Intelligencer 101 Elliott Avenue West Seattle, WA 98119.

DECLARATION OF DETECTIVE RIK HALL IN SUPPORT OF SUBPOENA DUCES TECUM SUBMITTED TO KOMO, KIRO, KSTW, KCPQ - 4 SEATTLE POLICE DEPARTMENT

610 FIFTH AVENUE
SEATTLE, WASHINGTON 98124

#### RCW 10.79,015

Other grounds for issuance of search warrant.

Any such magistrate, when satisfied that there is reasonable cause, may also, upon like complaint made on oath, issue search warrant in the following cases, to wit:

- (1) To search for and seize any counterfeit or spurious coin, or forged instruments, or tools, machines or materials, prepared or provided for making either of them.
- (2) To search for and seize any gaming apparatus used or kept, and to be used in any unlawful gaming house, or in any building, apartment or place, resorted to for the purpose of unlawful gaming.
- (3) To search for and seize any evidence material to the investigation or prosecution of any homicide or any felony: PROVIDED, That if the evidence is sought to be secured from any radio or television station or from any regularly published newspaper, magazine or wire service, or from any employee of such station, wire service or publication, the evidence shall be secured only through a subpoena duces tecum unless: (a) There is probable cause to believe that the person or persons in possession of the evidence may be involved in the crime under investigation; or (b) there is probable cause to believe that the evidence sought to be seized will be destroyed or hidden if subpoena duces tecum procedures are followed. As used in this subsection, "person or persons" includes both natural and judicial persons.
- (4) To search for and seize any instrument, apparatus or device used to obtain telephone or telegraph service in violation of RCW 9.26A.110 or 9.26A.115.

[2003 c 53 § 94; 1980 c 52 § 1; 1972 ex.s. c 75 § 2; 1989 c 83 § 1; 1949 c 86 § 1; Code 1881 § 986; 1873 p 216 § 154; 1854 p 101 § 2; Rem. Supp. 1949 § 2238. Formerly RCW 10.79.010, part.]

#### Notes

Intent -- Effective date -- 2003 c 53: See notes following RCW 2.48.180.